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1.2.2.1

Page

Question

Initem 1.2.2.1, DHSS mentions that the Fuel Assistance Program is not

designed to pay for all heating costs. Will the contractor need to

determine normal fuel usage for delivery-fuel customers and provide a

benefit that represents a limited percentage of need?

The SOW notes a State specified software application for case

management. If the contractor has an existing database application
which is also the WAP software being used in conjunction with DNREC,

and can fully meet the State business requirements and reporting

requirements, would the State be open to using Contractor’s proprietary

solution for case management and other purposes in the LIHEAP
program?

What is the general turnaround time for payment of an invoice once

submitted to DHSS?

Can DHSS share historical state data on LIHEAP-FAP, LIHEAP-SCAP, and
LIHEAP-ECIP grants by fuel and county, and perhaps by zip code? This

would be useful in siting satellite intake locations and for finding

underserved populations who would benefit from specific outreach

efforts.

For application documents requiring applicant signatures, does the DHSS

accept e-signatures?

Answers

No, the state will determine the benefit amounts for the clients.
Every program year the state develops the statewide benefit
matrix that considers income, household size, energy burden in
Delaware and the estimated cost of fuel types. During the
intake process, Low-Income Home Energy Program (LIHEAP)
software determines the benefit according to the entered data.

All LIHEAP client data must be present in the LIHEAP case
management software. If the bidder can propose how to utilize
the WAP software and extrapolate the required data inputs for
placement into the LIHEAP case management software, this will
be considered.

Maximum turnaround should be 30 days.

The data for LIHEAP analysis is all available in the LIHEAP
software system.

We do not have e-signaturee software available for clients and
the current LIHEAP software does not include e-signature
capability. However, during crisis we have allowed clients to
email us their asssent to the program waiver language.



Section C

Section C (1)(d)

10

Reference Page 4, Section C — If the service period is 1 year, the contract
period is 2 years, and the extension options are limited to a total of 5
years (doesn’t add up to 2-year increments), what is the absolute end of
this contract and extensions beginning with a 10/01/2020 through
09/30/2022 contract period?

Reference page 10, Budget Proposal, Section (C)(1)(d) — Clarify “Factors
that may have an impact on the cost and should suggest a payment
schedule contingent upon completion of the various tasks.”

The Division is requesting a community-based non-profit entity
to provide several components of the statewide DEAP for
eligible Delawareans with the program service period starting on
October 1, 2020. The program service period is one federal fiscal
year. Service period commences on October first (1) and
terminates on September thirtieth (30) of the same federal fiscal
year with option to extend the program services for a total of
five years, including the base year, contingent upon the
availability of appropriated funds and performance of the
contractor.

Contract period is two federal fiscal years unless the funding of
the contract is exhausted before the end of the second federal
fiscal year. Contract period commences on the day of execution
of the contract and terminates on September thirtieth (30) of
the second federal fiscal year.

It is important to understand the difference between program
year and contract period, because contracts are initiated
annually but expire in the end of the second program year,
unless the funding on the contract has been exhausted earlier.
The RFP states the contract term will be 1 year with 4 optional 1
year renewals.

It is up to contractor to clarify the factors that may have an
impact on the cost and should suggest a payment schedule
contigent upon completion of the various tasks. The usual
practice of the state is to reimburse the cost after the task has
been 100% completed. However, sometimes state does make
payments according to the payment schedule before 100% of
the task has been completed. For example, if the contractor
requires updates to its digital platform for providing services and
the state agrees that this update is necessary to serve clients,
then the state could consider payment schedule instead of
reimbursing 100% of the cost of update when it has been 100%
completed.



V (8) ( c )Safe
Harbor

3.6.1

27

72

Reference page 27, (V.)(8)(c) ACA Safe Harbor — Clarify what is expected
from contractors, who provide health care coverage for their full-time

employees.

Reference page 72, 3.6.1 — What is the expectation for the “one

comprehensive intake process” for programs of assistance, like RRHACE
and SCAP A/C, which do not fall under the purview of this contract? Will
other contractors process LIHEAP applications for programs of assistance
that do fall under this contract, like heating assistance and energy crisis
intervention? Will all contractors have access and permission to alter the

work of other contractors within LIHEAP?

If applicable, bidders should acknowledge their approach to - and
understanding of - the ACA Safe Harbor position of the State of
Delaware. The State of Delaware does not consider vendors,
contractors and/or subcontractors employees of the state and/or
eligible for health benefits by the State of Delaware. As documented in
the RFP on Page 27, “....The State requires that all Vendors shall
identify the Additional Fee to obtain health coverage from the Vendor
and delineate the Additional Fee from all other charges and fees. The
Vendor shall identify both the Additional Fee to be charged and the
basis of how the fee is applied (i.e. per employee, per invoice, etc.).
The State will consider the Additional Fee and prior to award reserves
the right to negotiate any fees offered by the Vendor. Further, the
Additional Fee shall be separately scored in the proposal to ensure that
neither prices charged nor the Additional Fee charged will have a
detrimental effect when selecting vendor(s) for award.

All the LIHEAP components and programs that LIHEAP
administers fall under this intake contract. There is a general
LIHEAP application that has to be filled out before all the
components can complete their applications or enter data into
LIHEAP software for federal reports. For example, if the
household wants Summer Cooling Assistance Program Air-
Conditioning (SCAP A/C) but has not filled out LIHEAP
application, then the agency who wins the award under this
contract has to fill out LIHEAP application for that household so
that the SCAP A/C component contractor can complete the post-
eligibility for that household in the LIHEAP software. The agency
don't have to fill out the SCAP A/C component application which
is done by the SCAP A/C contractor. However, the agency has to
fill out LIHEAP application if requested by any other agency who
utilizes LIHEAP software.



3.6.2

4.1.1

73

74

Page 73, Section 3.6.2 — Is the contractor able to electronically maintain
LIHEAP client files in a secure (password protected, backed-up, etc.),
HIPAA-compliant database?

Will the State allow secure electronic submission of required LIHEAP
application documents? If only certain documents may be electronically
submitted, what is that list? When and under what circumstances are
face-to-face, in-person interactions required between the intake worker
and the LIHEAP applicants?

May one organization submit more than one proposal, if the proposals
are substantially different?

What is the form/format required for time and effort reporting, and
which positions must report time and effort?

This has to be negotiated and approved by State of Delaware
Delaware Department of Technology and Information (DTI).
However, these costs should not be passed on to the state if the
agency struggles to stay withing administrative cost cap. Hence,
the agency might have to pay for the purchase, maintenance
and operations of that software with private funds.

Right now the state does allow LIHEAP application documents to
be submitted electronically over email because the current crisis
in the United States. It is highly probable that the state will
consider electronic submissions over email to be acceptable
practice also after the current crisis. However, the state has not
changed its current LIHEAP policy to reflect electronic
submissions under regular circumstances.

No

It is up to contractor to propose to the state how they will be
tracking time and effort. The agency is expected to track time
and effort if the staff who administers LIHEAP does more than
one program. The agency is also expected to track time and
effort if the staff splits its time between administrative and
program functions and agency plans to bill the state some labor
hours under program costs and some labor hours under
administrative costs. Please be aware that the federal
government allows LIHEAP to be invoiced only for actual hours,
not for estimated hours and the agency has to be able to prove
to the auditors that they have been billing the state only for

artinial hanire



41.21

3.6.3

74

74

Total operational costs are limited to 10% of the total allocation to the
agency. What citation or resource was used to determine this 10% cap on
operational costs?

WAP applicant files — Who will monitor Weatherization (WAP) case files,
since this contract is with DHSS and not DNREC?

The state is the deciding authority on the allowed expenses,
including operational costs. There are many other costs that the
state has to consider and this award is not the only expense to
the program. The bidder is expected to design a budget with the
operational cost capped at 10%. The bidding agency could
propose an operational budget higher than 10% but it will be
evaluated accordingly because then the agency did not follow
the requirements. It is highly recommended for the contractor
to consider some private funds or, if necessary, conduct fund
raising to cover costs that are above its allowed caps.

The LIHEAP Weatherization Program (WAP) is the DHSS
program, not DNREC's program. Department of Natural
Resources and Environmental Control (DNREC) receives funds
from Delaware Health and Social Services (DHSS) to administer
WAP and assure compliance with WAP. The monitoring process
is not changing. The weatherization subgrantee that is
responsible for assuring eligibility of all clients will review the
application documents in the WAP software before proceeding
with weatherization services. DHSS, DNREC and WAP
subgrantees will all monitor for the compliance. Currently Office
of Community Services (OCS) monitors LIHEAP WAP
applications; hence the process stays same.



4.2.5.2

76

77

Weatherization (WAP) has no allocation to the contractor, and page 76,
Section 4.2.5.2 says this new intake requirement will get paid with
program costs. DNREC previously paid for the costs of WAP intakes. Are
the WAP program costs associated with intake going to be backed out of
the 10% limit on operational expenses? Will these costs be passed
through or covered by DNREC, so they are not counted as part of the 10%
cap?

This section contains a blank “Appendix A, Performance Measurements
Summary Matrix.” How are potential contractors supposed to account in
the budget for costs associated with these performance measurements?

This is not a correct understanding of the program. WAP
application is part of the LIHEAP intake. There is no separate
WAP, it is part of LIHEAP as one component of LIHEAP and the
awarded agency or agencies are going to conduct LIHEAP intake.
We don't look at the program components as separate
programs. We look at it as one LIHEAP program that has many
services. The agency is not going to get paid separately or
additonally for WAP applications. There is LIHEAP application
that entails heating, cooling, weatherization and crisis and this
agency has to fill out applications for LIHEAP services as
requested by the household when they come to their office.
They should not be forwarded to go to other offices to do
applications for other LIHEAP services. No, there will be no
expenses covered by DNREC to do applications because they are
LIHEAP WAP applications, not DNREC's applications. LIHEAP
allocates funds to DNREC to complete WAP services. In addition,
LIHEAP is going to pay for the intake worker to take the
applications according to the time and effort. Hence, if the
shorter application process without WAP takes 20 minutes, then
LIHEAP pays 20 minutes of labor. If the application process takes
45 minutes with WAP, then LIHEAP pays 45 minutes of labor.

The performance measurements will be created from the SOW
that is in the RFP. There will be no measures created that are
not reflected in the SOW. Hence, the bidder needs to submitthe
budget andd work plan that reflect the requirements in the
SOW. The measurements cannot be created before the winner
or winners have been selected because the measurements have
to reflect the awarded contract



Item 3

How many LIHEAP intake applications are the contractor expected to
process for each LIHEAP program of assistance (FAP, SCAP, ECIP, WAP)?
What is the methodology used to determine the expected number of
applications? How are weather, economic, or other factors incorporated
in the methodology? How should the budget reflect intake volume
fluctuations for factors outside the contractor’s control?

Will the potential winner of this bid receive support from the outgoing
agency? If so: in what form? e.g. systems onboarding, training, transition
support, accumulated records, reports, and data etc? If not: will a new
system be put in place or will the winning bidder be tasked with creating
it from ground up? Would the agency be receptive to bringing on a
consultant to work with the incumbent organization if there were areas
that required additional support?

Are energy vendors considered "subcontractors" for the purpose of
Attachment 67
Where or what is "Sectiton I.D.?"

The contractor's administrative costs are going to depend on the
invoice amounts of heating and crisis regular. Hence, if
contractor does more intake and submits more heating
applications, it will get more administrative funds. If it does less,
then it will receive less administrative funds. The volume of
intake will depend on the contractor's capability to do outreach.
It is highly recommended for the contractor to consider some
private funds or, if necessary, conduct fund raising to cover
costs that are above its allowed caps.

Yes, the OCS will help to support the new agency if necessary.
The applications are managed in the software system that state
manages. The OCS understands that the new contractor or
contractors will need to learn to use these systems.

No

This is an error in the published RFP. There is no such section.



Clarification for Page 24 of RFP V.4.a: The term of the contract between
the successful bidder and the State shall be for one (1) year with four (4)
optional extensions for a period of one (1) year for each extension.

Please look for clarification to this section on page 4 of RFP, C.
Project Goals: The Division is requesting a community-based non-
profit entity to provide several components of the statewide
DEAP for eligible Delawareans with the program service period
starting on October 1, 2020. The program service period is one
federal fiscal year. Service period commences on October first
(1) and terminates on September thirtieth (30) of the same
federal fiscal year with option to extend the program services
for a total of five years, including the base year, contingent upon
the availability of appropriated funds and performance of the
contractor.

Contract period is two federal fiscal years unless the funding of
the contract is exhausted before the end of the second federal
fiscal year. Contract period commences on the day of execution
of the contract and terminates on September thirtieth (30) of
the second federal fiscal year.

It is important to understand the difference between program
year and contract period, because contracts are initiated
annually but expire in the end of the second program year,
unless the funding on the contract has been exhausted earlier.
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